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that she could tell colors of cars and things 1like that
and there is just no way.

Q. And ultimately she was claiming that she
identified Mr. Wells from all of this too?

A. Right, and that was quite candidly, as long as
my client's name didn't come up it was fine, but it was
clear there is no way she could have seen any of that.
She couldn't have seen Mr. Wells. She couldn't, you
know, have seen Jack the Ripper if he was there.

Q. In one of her statements she was inconsistent
with even the skin tone of the person she allegedly saw?

A. Yes.

0. And then the second exhibit is exhibit six,
would you describe that for the Court please.

A. So this is for visual and so I think with Jjurors
I just assume that they want to be super visual as well,
or at least I hope they do. It seemed to work out
pretty well. But -- so I had different locations on a
map of where the incident was. So I think it's already
been testified to that the car was searched that evening
because it was at a different location and so there were
different sightings of different people homes and just
where they were that evening. So it was easy to put it
all on a map with different locations and then you can

color code it to help the jurors understand like A, how
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spaciously how far all of these thing are and how long
it would would take if someone pulled a trigger at 11
how fast they would have to drive to get where they are
going and things like that.
So it's just another exhibit that I like to put in

demonstrably for jurors.

Q. So this is -- and then I think there were some
references to in some of these, but the incident

location is up at the top, but the car is allegedly

found?

A. Not only found, but it was some witnesses said
that they followed it or they saw it driving. So -- and
then of course where it was found. It was really far.

In order for that car to have been involved they would
have had to --

Q. It looks like it cross into a different county.

A. Yeah, it would have crossed into I think it was
Greenwood or --

Q. Greenville County.

A. Yeah, Greenville, yes, because it was like close
up to the edge where a lot of the stuff was.

0. In Spartanburg, so sort of the three counties.
And you made this exhibit, right?

A. I did.

MS. MCMAHAN: At this time I would ask for




503

A. Zmroczek - Direct by Ms. McMahan 43

1 five and six to be entered.

2 MR. JONES: No objection, Your Honor.

3 THE COURT: All right. Applicants five and
4 six.

5 (WHEREUPON, Applicant's five and six were

6 received in evidence.)

7 Q. And the body camera footage did you initially

8 get that from the solicitor or how did that come about?
9 A. I did not. I love body cams. Love them. Love
10 them. It's my go to because they really helped I think
11 to give an understanding of what's going on even that
12 night because it's so chaotic and reports and pictures
13 really don't do it justice and so I did not see them

14 that night -- from that night. I had actually seen a
15 crime scene photos which showed the camera with the

16 green light on the uniform and so I knew they had them
17 but they kept telling me they didn't exist, but

18 eventually we got them before trial.

19 Q. So you were told repeatedly that the body
20 cameras didn't exist?
21 A. Yes.
22 Q. And eventually suddenly they have them?
23 A. Yes.
24 0. And they have body cams from Crane, Timmons and
25 Swett is what you ended up with?
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A. Yes.

Q. And did you end up using these in trial? Well
obviously you used a screen shot from one of them. Did
you use the rest of these?

A. I thought I did.

Q. And some of these other ones were Kelly Ball
giving statements?

A. That's why in addition to her being contradicted
by her own testimony on the 911 call then these were
also available and used for impeachment.

MS. MCMAHAN: Your Honor, at this time I
would like to make this Applicant's seven, I
believe.

MR. JONES: No objection.

THE COURT: All right, Applicant's seven.

(WHEREUPON, Applicant's number seven was
marked and received into evidence.)

Q. And in the body cams not only did they show
Kelly give a statement, but do they find another gun
laying out in the dirt?

A. Yes. One of the things I found in the body
camera and I think it's still hanging in my office the
picture of it -- there was an officer who picked up what

appears to be a gun and it looks like he's wiping it

off. I mean -- so he he puts his hand over his body
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cam, but you you can still see out the bottom and so it
looks like he's wiping it off. So I was able to cross
examine the officers about how they handled the evidence
because there were some evidentiary issues and -- but he
then tried to explain that he was racking the gun
multiple times. But yeah, I remember using that
specifically at trial.

Q. I am going to show you this picture. 1Is this
the picture of that gun that he's allegedly racking in
the body cam footage?

A. Yes.

MR. MCMAHAN: Your Honor, I would like to
mark this as Applicant's exhibit eight.

MR. JONES: No objection.

THE COURT: Applicant's eight is received
into evidence.

(WHEREUPON, Applicant's eight was marked and
received into evidence.)

Q. So you were able to use the fact that he had
held this gun in his hand on this allegedly non-existent

body camera and racked it and then it was back in the

dirt --
A. Yes.
Q. Where this photo was taken on?

A. Yes. That was done after it had already been




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

506

A. Zmroczek - Direct by Ms. McMahan

46
handled.

0. Yeah. And do you know what kind of gun that is?

A. I do not. I should but I do not. I did at the
time. It fires bullets.

Q. And what other evidence was there given to you
that took you quite a bit of time to kind of get?
Anything else?

A. I just remember there were the body cams and the

pictures are to me are the most important because they
show exactly what is going on out there and there's
always something to help me determine location etc, and
the body cams were really good at being able to
understand where everything was because it actually
looks like an altercation happened. Somebody came out
from the shed or whatever and I think glasses were
knocked off. The location of guns and things like that
-- and there was also a different dog on a chain to a
tree and to me that was significant because I mean
people who chain trees to dogs usually have them out
there for protection and so to me this was significant
that this must have been somebody that they knew.
So a lot of that evidence I had to fight tooth and

nail for it I can tell you. Nothing came easy in this.

Q. So at one point you also made a motion to compel

Giglio material?
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1 A. Yes

2 Q. What was that specific material what we already
3 address today?

4 A. Yeah, specifically some of the officers have had
5 some problems that could effect their credibility by the
6 time my case went to trial.

7 Q. And one of those was Detective Cheeks's?

8 A. Yes.

9 Q. Because he is no longer a detective is what I

10 understand?

11 A. No.

12 Q. And you also had made a motion to -- I guess to
13 exclude some sort of testimony of Investigator's Cheeks
14 because of a Brady violation. Do you recall that?

15 A. I recall making the motion. I don't recall what
16 the violation was. He came with a large set of

17 problems.

18 Q. Okay, and ultimately Mr. Saxton who was not your
19 most cooperative client that you ever had was found not
20 guilty?
21 A. Yes. We picked jury. He then refuse to
22 participate in trial or refused to come to court for the
23 next six days. So we did the murder, robbery,
24 conspiracy and weapon trial without him and he was
25 acquited on everything accept I think they hung on the
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conspiracy which was ultimately dismissed.
MS. MCMAHAN: Answer any questions the
Attorney General may have.
CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. JONES:
Q. Good afternoon Miss Zmroczek, do you still have

the text messages before you?

A. Yes.

Q. These are from someone I believe you said
Theresa?

A. So the number -- the phone is actually the

decedent's but the number comes back to Theresa who was
another female in the decedent's life.

Q. All right, so were these sent by the decedent or
by Theresa?

A. They were received by the decedent.

Q. All right, and I believe you described them to
Miss McMahan as evidence of a woman using drugs and
threatening the life of the decedent?

A. Yes.

Q. And could you point to me exactly where in the
text messages the woman admits or mentions drugs of any
kind?

A. Well, so she doesn't mention drugs in the text

messages. That came from the investigation and
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Q. Okay, so it wasn't -- these text messages were
not evidence of her -- this is Theresa -- using drugs?
A. You going down to me was -- I guess I mean...
Q. You're going down on is evidence of drug use?

A. No, that's the evidence of a threat.
Q. All right, you going down with no punctuation

plausibly could have been a question about is he going
down somewhere?

A. Absolutely freakin' could have.

Q. In other words, when you say this say threat
you're making a bit of inferential leap, isn't that
true?

A. I am making a reasonable inference, but -- you

know, a leap.

Q. It's not plain from the --

A. Absolutely.

Q. Text.

A. No, not. It's certainly something I think
reasonable that a jury can consider either way. The

problem is that had I not fought tooth and nail to get
these then I wouldn't have been able then to argue that
the night he was shot he also received a text message
saying you're going down, which to me isn't a leap, but

it's and inference absolutely.

49
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Q. So do you dispute that David Walker was the
person who actually shot the victim?

A. Honestly, I wasn't there so I have no idea who
shot him.

Q. Do you dispute that David Walker was found on
the porch with a gun shot wound in his neck from the
victim's revolver?

A. Right, and I believe he even told him so I don't
dispute that.

Q. So, did you establish a connection between David
Walker and this Theresa?

A. I'm sorry, did I what?

Q. Do you have a connection between David Walker
and this Theresa?

A. I don't off the top of my head.

Q. All right. Do you recall the testimony of
Torris Moore who I believe testified in your client's
case as well as Mr. Well's case?

A. I haven't read the transcript in a while, but I
believe so.

0. All right.

A. If you just give he me the gist I'll remember.

Q. I believe the gist was that she had encountered

Mr. Saxton, Mr. Wells and David Walker prior to the

robbery and that Mr. Walker approached her seeking a gun
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to use in the robbery. He said he only had one gun that
belongs to Mr. Wells, isn't that correct?

A. I believe that is what was testified to, yeah.

Q. All right. 1In this photograph -- and I forget
which defendant's exhibit this is.

A. Applicant's five.

Q. Yes, I believe so. What is these blue and red

markings on the far right side?

A. What are these?

0. Yes, ma'am.

A. Those are the lights attached to the police
vehicle.

Q. All right. Would it be fair to say you can't

really distinguish any writing or anything else really

about vehicle from these lights based on this

photograph?
A. Yes.
Q. All right. Have you seen police cars in real

life face to face and not just on a photograph?

A. Have I seen police cars in real life, yes.
0. With the lights on?

A. Yes.

Q. All right. 1Is it your experience that you

usually can't see any of the car underneath the blinking

police lights when they have them on?
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A. There is so -- this is a cop-out answer, but
there are so many variables as to what you can and can't
see.

Q. Well, one variable would be the quality of the

camera, wouldn't that be correct?

A. Absolutely.

Q. So a camera wouldn't show impossibly dark
lights?

A. Precisely why I like to do jury views and most

importantly go out there by myself and to know, hey, am

I'm going to make this argument based on just what I see

through other people. That's why I go out there myself.
Q. Right. So you would not make an argument just

based on this photograph?

A. Absolutely not.
0. For those reasons?
A. Right.

THE COURT: One second. Is the photograph a
still of a body cam?

MS. MCMAHAN: It is, and the body cam -- any
time I put stills in generally the body cam is
already in. So they had that for viewing.

THE COURT: My apologies. You may proceed.

Q. So would it be fair to say that you viewed there

being some rivalry between Theresa and Kelly Ball?
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1 A. Yes. I think that was pretty evident, yes.

2 Q. In other words there would be no reason for

3 Kelly Ball to lie to protect Theresa?

4 A. I honestly have no idea about her motivations to
5 lie or tell the truth. Sorry.

6 Q. All right. So -- and what exactly would be the
7 relevance of the rivalry between Kelly Ball and Theresa
8 to Miss Ball's credibility then?

9 A. Well -- so, I think the whole -- the whole

10 problem with this case is there were a lot of problems
11 evidentiary wise, but I just think that the lay

12 witness's testimony can be very impactful when there's
13 not that much and so the purpose of attacking the

14 credibility is Jjust that, when a jury when they are

15 going to make important decisions -- you know, can

16 understand.

17 0. When you said it's not that much, the evidence
18 is not that much, do you have the transcript of the --
19 from Mr. Saxton's case of Kelly Ball's testimony with
20 you?
21 A. Yes, applicant's three.
22 Q. Can you turn to page 947
23 A. Yes.
24 Q. And I'm looking specifically at lines 12 through
25 15. That will be where the solicitor on direct
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examination asks Miss Ball, "Let me just ask you this
again. Did you ever see the defendant in this case,
John Lee Saxton that night?? And Kelly Ball says, "No
sir? Are you reading that?

A. Yes.

Q. All right. Do you think that could have had
something to do with the fact that Mr. Saxton was
ultimately acquited, the fact the only eye-witness to
the crime expressly stated she never saw him that night?

A. Absolutely, but that was page 94 of that direct
examination. Had that question been asked on page one I
don't think that question would have been asked, had we
not taken her down that road of challenging her

credibility to be quite honest.

Q. Have you read her testimony from Mr. Wells?
A. I did read it before the trial.
0. And did she claim that she saw Mr. Saxton and

could identify him that night?

A. No, but every time that she opened her mouth a
new story came out so in case she claimed that now I
needed to be prepared.

0. All right.

MR. JONES: Thank you. I think that's all
the questions I have for you. Thank you.

THE COURT: Redirect.
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REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. MCMAHAN:
Q. So the text, "You're going down" would you
describe that as reasonable doubt?
A. Oh, yes.
MS. MCMAHAN: Nothing further, Your Honor.
THE COURT: You may step down.
MS. ZMROCZEK: Thank you. I'm under
subpoena. May be excused?
THE COURT: Any objection?
MR. JONES: No objection.
MS. MCMAHAN: ©No objection. Thank you.
THE COURT: You may call your next witness.
MS. MCMAHAN: At this time the Applicant
rests.
THE COURT: Mr. Jones.
MR. JONES: Thank you, Your Honor. The State
would call Rodney Richey.
RODNEY RICHEY, called as a witness, was
sworn by the clerk and testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. JONES:
Q. Mr. Richey, how long have you been practicing
law?

A. Twenty-five years.
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Q. And about what proportion of that has been
criminal law?

A. About 60, 70 percent. It fluctuates from year
to year.

Q. Do you remember how you became involved with Mr.
Wells's case?

A. I think I was appointed to him as an overflow
client from Greenville. Greenville -- if I'm not
mistaken -- was the overflow county for Laurens at the
time and I got appointed to him down in Laurens. I
think that's how it went down. Something like that. I
know I got appointed to him.

Q. And could you just generally describe the nature
of the evidence in this case?

A. Well, first, the evidence that is set out is
kind of what it was. The problem in this case is Mr.
Wells is very difficult to represent. Was not very
cooperative at all and that hurt the representation a
great bit because as he testified I went to the jail
several times and talked to him and he was combative.
He was right, at the jail I left. He was so combative
during this whole situation that I actually took him
before Judge Addy some time before this trial to the
trial judge and said, hey, this gentlemen is not

cooperative. There's an offer out there that he needs
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to consider and I took him in front of the judge because
he was not cooperative and when he wasn't cooperative I
was trying to get his story from him, but I did get
enough from him on the initial visit.

Q. Okay. And you mentioned the plea offer. Could
you explain the plea process?

A. Well, what happened is when I first went down
and spoke with him the first couple of times we talked
about the the case and Mr. Wells's position was that all
three of them were not guilty. All three of them. And
I told Mr. Wells, I said, look, we already had one
trial. This gentlemen got convicted. Got life. He
said, he's not guilty. He's not guilty, and I was like,
sir, they had a trial. Okay. And what I derived from
my conversations with him was I don't think in my mind
there was any dispute he was out there that night. None
in my mind based on my conversations with him and talk
about this group of guys and they all were innocent and
it didn't really go down like that. It wasn't a murder
and all this stuff.

So from my position it wasn't a dispute whether he
was out there. So what I did was this gentlemen I think
he was out like 2007 until the time of this case. He
had some bad significant criminal history before then,

but he was doing great. I mean, I think he was keeping
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his grandkids. He was doing really, really good. So
based off my conversation with him I went to the
solicitor and I said, hey, the gentlemen who was out
there killed the guy, but I don't think my client was
there. Okay. I just think that it was a bad -- these
guys where up there and he didn't know anything about it
and they came down after all this stuff and he drove
off. And the solicitor -- I talked with him. Talked
with him and I said I think this is what's the story.

So after talking with the prosecutor for several times
about this he came to me and Mr. Wells had been in jail
I want to say two, three years. A long time. And so I
pitched to the solicitor, hey, let's do an accessory
after the fact because I think he might have been there,
but I don't think because how good he was doing. He was
staying out of trouble. He was doing great and I said I
don't think he probably knew that was going to go down.
That's the position I took. So let's get him out of the
case because when the first guy got life it kind of put
me on high alert.

So the solicitor came back and he said, hey, I will
let him plead to accessory after the fact, five years.
Basically it will be a turn around. He will go down
there. He will get processed and he will be back home.

Okay. Me and Mr. Wells, he's right, we had some
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spirited conversations about that because I said, hey,

man, don't give the State of South Carolina your whole

life. Don't do it. Don't do it. So he was like, no,
we're all innocent. All innocent. So at that point I
went down to jail. We went over the evidence

extensively because I said, hey, here's a guy that has
given the State potentially his whole life. His whole
life. And so, I sit down. We talk about the case. I
said, hey, you go get identified. You're wallet is out
there. All this stuff. And I was like this is some
times it becomes a risk reward type of thing and because
you're taking the approach you're taking, one, being
very uncooperative. When you say —-- because I would
recall this I believe pretty clearly is, if it didn't
happen like they say it happened tell me what happened.
Okay, if it didn't happen like they say it had happened
what happened? So when you start making those kind of
statements it's not like you're saying I'm a across
town. You know, I'm down in Georgia. You're saying
that the story, you know, what happened is not what they
said happened. I couldn't get that out of him. I Jjust
couldn't get it and any time you try a case and your
defendant is very, very, uncooperative it's a difficult
case to try because from his standpoint he had a

significant -- he had a record and that was implicated
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him testifying in the trial, but I think every body is
aware that he has right to testify if he wants so.

So the case that I had was a very difficult case
because of the client and the facts. Okay. Because I'm
in a mixed bag here where you start talking about was he
there, was he not there. That's a tricky slope for me
in this case.

Q. And would that be a tricky foundation to even
mount an investigation in the first place?

A. Well, that was really -- see when you start
talking about investigation, Mr. Wells, his cooperation
level would impede any investigation. So when I would
talk to him about the case and say, hey, i1if we have gone
to trial I would need some witnesses or something and
no, no, no, and similar to today, he says -- I mean,
there was no witnesses that I'm aware of because I would
have called them because it was a very, very significant
case that he went on trial on.

Q. Did you -- I believe you testified that you did
go over the evidence in the case with him prior to
trial?

A. We went over the evidence. We went over and
that's why I said this type of case, this gentlemen is
basically putting his whole life on the line that --

that I will make sure he knows the evidence that I have
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1 in this case.

2 Q. You explained the elements of the charges he was
3 facing?

4 A. He was fully aware of that LWOP and he made a

5 statement during the trial that he got offered to plead
6 to armed robbery. He did, but they also agreed to

7 remove the LWOP because when I went to them with the

8 offer I'm not going to go to them with an offer you

9 plead to LWOP. That's not an offer. So they were going
10 to allow him to plead in the middle of the trial and --
11 and I remember I think telling him to plead because I
12 think I had -- the judge and everybody we had knew that
13 the offer the gentlemen got that it was such a shame

14 that this man has to spend all this time in jail. 1It's
15 just a shame.

16 Q. And you did explain to him that the LWOP would
17 be removed if he took the plea?

18 A. Absolutely. Absolutely.

19 Q. You heard Mr. Wells say that he had a
20 manslaughter conviction. Did you advise him about that
21 when discussing his right to testify about the
22 possibility of that coming up?
23 A. He didn't want to testify. I talked to him.
24 It's his decision. I don't make that decision and
25 really in this case, I mean, it could have been
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beneficial for him to testify. I guess he could get up
there and say he wasn't there, but it's always the
client's right to testify regardless less of what the
lawyers say. That's their right and he has right to do
it or not do it.

0. And I realize it has been a long time since the
trial, but do you recall the cross examination you did
of the witness Kelly Wall?

A. I don't.

Q. Do you recall one of the witnesses mentioning
something about a man named Ty who looked something like
Mr. Wells, but later denied it was Mr. Ty?

A. I don't know.

Q. Can you explain what kinds of motions you made
prior to the trial for disclosure of evidence?

A. I do a discovery motion. I'm pretty sure I did
that. I don't know of any other. The transcript might
reflect it, but I do a basic discovery motion minimum in
every case.

MR. JONES: Beg the Court's indulgence.
Mr. Richey, I think that may be all the
questions I have for you at this time.
THE COURT: Cross examination.
CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MS. MCMAHAN:
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1 Q. Mr. Richey, did you have that those text
2 messages and stuff from that phone?
3 A. If it came in discovery I'd have it.
4 Q. Did you hear Miss Zmroczek's testimony where she
5 said she had to fight for it and request it?
o A. No, I didn't hear that, but I got the discovery
7 in the case and I was satisfied with the information
8 that I got.
9 Q. Did you have the body camera footage?
10 A. If it was part of discovery I did.
11 Q. It wasn't used in the trial at all. So would
12 you have used it in the trial if you had it?
13 A. I don't know. I can't say. I can't say.
14 Q. Would you have tried to use Kelly Ball's
15 statement as she gave in those body cams against her if
16 it was useable?
17 A. Well, the problem is that there was no question
18 in my mind he was there. There was none. I had no
19 question that he was up there. So, in terms of -- see
20 this is kind of a slippery slope theme that I'm going to
21 impeach her on stuff that I know to not to be true. You
22 know, that's the hard thing to do.
23 Q. And so the defense was really he was there but
24 he didn't know this was all going down?
25 A. Based on -- based on the little information I
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got from him and the uncooperativeness that I got from
him, I essentially put together the case myself because
I had no -- no beneficial client's assistance.

Q. And I know you said you had some spirited
conversations with him. Do you recall how many times
you might have met with him?

A. I would say off the top of of my head I know it
was at least five to six because I had the initial
meeting. My initial meeting generally a client is not
with discovery. Generally I go tell me what happened
and then I get my discovery.

That's my initial meeting with 95% of my clients
and the next meeting I'll have the discovery and then
the next we have discovery and then I know we had a
meeting before we went in front of Judge Addy. I know
we had a meeting before trial as he said so. At less
five, six times minimum.

Q. And do you recall if you asked for a directed

verdict in the trial?

A. What's that?

Q. Do you recall if you asked for a directed
verdict?

A. If I did»

Q. Yes.

A. I don't recall. The transcript would reflect




525

R. Richey - Cross by Ms. McMahan

65

1 that.

2 Q. And did you see any issues with the indictment

3 that you could have made a motion to quash or anything

4 like that?

5 A. No.

6 Q. In the limiting instruction that the judge gave
7 about when the solicitor was insinuating, I guess, the

8 fact that Walker was found guilty so Mr. Wells should be
9 found guilty and the Court gave a limiting instruction
10 on that. Did you see any reason to object to that

11 limiting instruction?

12 A. I think the transcript would reflect that. I

13 don't recall specifically, but the transcript would

14 reflect what I did.

15 MS. MCMAHAN: Court's indulgence. I have no
16 further questions, Your Honor.

17 THE COURT: Any redirect.

18 MR. JONES: Just briefly Your Honor.

19 REDIRECT EXAMINATION
20 BY MR. JONES:
21 0. Mr. Richey, so, Miss McMahan asked you about the
22 portion of the trial where evidence came in that David
23 Walker, the co-defendant, was ultimately convicted for
24 the murder of the wvictim and then the -- it's correct
25 that Mr. Wells was acquited for the murder, correct?
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A. Yes. Yes. And that was a big deal because the
way that trial was going and him getting convicted of
murder there was a real possibility because of the hand
of one, hand of all and that's just signifies how tricky
this case was and the way I had to -- the way that Mr.
Wells had me do the case. When I say do the case. It
made the State's evidence better than what it actually
was. The way his level of participation and the way he
was doing it actually made their case I believe better
than what it really was.

0. All right. I think that is all I have for you
Mr. Richey.

A. Thank you.

THE COURT: All right, you may step down.

MR. RICHEY: Can I be excused Your Honor?

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

MR. RICHEY: Thank you.

MR. JONES: That's the State'S case, Your
Honor.

I would ask for the ability to make an
argument to the Court. I don't know if you want
it by closing statements because of the complexity
of the case.

THE COURT: Well, I got big issues with this

case. I want some type of exhibits provided by
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1 either -- I'm not closing this. I want to know

2 from the solicitor's office if evidence was

3 provided or not. If there are body cams and

4 especially body cams that deal with the firearm

5 being left on the ground that's after being picked
6 up, wiped off, being chucked on the ground I have
7 serious issues, especially if that wasn't

8 provided. So, I don't know if I need to retain

9 jurisdiction or if we need to resume and have

10 another witness brought in in regards to the

11 solicitor's office, but, I haven't heard

12 sufficient testimony.

13 MS. MCMAHAN: I think in that situation, one,
14 I think it would be better for to you retain

15 jurisdiction. And two, it maybe a situation where
16 one not only perhaps the attorney general

17 approaches the solicitor with that set of

18 questions instead of myself, but also perhaps

19 maybe see if Mr. Richey still has his file on hand
20 to see exactly what he was given.
21 THE COURT: Based upon his testimony I think
22 don't know what he was given.
23 MS. MCMAHAN: I can tell you obviously by
24 reading the transcript the body cam was not used
25 at trial at all. I provided the body camera
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footage so that the Court can view it and so I
think in terms of issues with the solicitor and
what they provided having been a solicitor myself
some times you don't necessarily keep that stuff.
I think that might be better for the attorney
general to talk to them about that.

MR. JONES: 1TI'll be happy to talk to them
about that, Your Honor. I was not aware of that
accusation prior to Miss Zmroczek testimony.

THE COURT: Well, his appellant rights this
has been appealed and that wasn't brought up
because he didn't know about it. But if discovery
wasn't provided that's an issue.

MR. JONES: I will certainly look into that,
and we can work out the scheduling of any
subsequent --

THE COURT: What I can do is just do a form
four retaining jurisdiction over this. If we need
to resume via Webex and get the parties to agree
with that if we have to.

MS. MCMAHAN: I'm okay with that.

MR. JONES: I'm also okay with that.

THE COURT: Mr. Wells, I will need for to you
agree to take as well. Do you have any issue with

me retaining jurisdiction on this if we have to we
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may have to resume via Webex. It's on camera
rather than in person if we have to do that. 1Is
that okay with you?

THE APPLICANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

(END OF TRANSCRIPT)
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
) FOR THE 8+ JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF LAURENS ) Case No.: 2019-CP-30-00134

Christopher J. Wells, #193588,

ORDER GRANTING
POST CONVICTION RELIEF

Applicant,
V.
State of South Carolina,

Respondent.

. L

-

This matter is before the Court by way of a Post-Conviction Rehiel .—&%lii{f_ﬁtinn
(PCR) filed by Christopher J. Wells (Applicant) on or about Fi'hl‘llil;t'.}' 1&3 gllg,;antl
amended on December 4, 2023, % o _.

The Court convened an evidentiary hearing on November 28{' 2043, at the
Newberry County Courthouse. Applicant was present at the hunringj‘x;ﬁ re@reéq’htcd
by Ashley A. McMahan, Esquire. Assistant Attorney General Zacharv W. Jones
represented the State. The Applicant, Rodney W. Richey, Esquire, and Aimee J.
Zmroczek, Esquire testified at the hearing. On or about February 15, 2024, in lieu of
in-person testimony, the Attorney General presented an afhidavit of O, Warren
Mowry, Jr. via e-mail. After reviewing all the records and evidence presented to the
Court, the Court linds that the Applicant has met his burden of proof establishing
that he iz entitled to post-conviction relief. This Court finds as follows:

I. PROCEDURAL HISTORY

Mr. Wells is currently confined in the South Carolina Department of
Corrections pursuant to Orders of Commitment of the Laurens County Clerk of
Court. During the April 2015, term of the Laurens County Grand Jury, Applicant was
indicted for Possession of a Weapon During the Commission of a Violent Crime (2015-
(GS-30-00503), Armed Robbery (2015-GS-30-00504), and Criminal Conspiracy (2015-
(GS-30-00505). During the July 2015, term of the Laurens County Grand Jury the
Applicant was also indicted for Murder (2015-GS-30-01162),
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On Apnil 25-27, 2016, Mr. Wells proceeded to trial before the Honorable Frank
R. Addy, Jr. The jury convicted the Applicant on Possession of a Weapon During the
Commission of a Violent Crime, Armed Robbery, and Criminal Conspiracy. Mr. Wells
was found not guilty of Murder!. Applicant was sentenced to life without parole.

A timely Notice of Appeal was filed and an appeal was perfected. Appellate
Defender Katherine H. Hudgins represented Mr. Wells, Assistant Attorney General
S. Ranee Saunders represented the State. On November 8, 2017, the South Carolina
Court of Appeals affirmed the Applicant’s conviction and sentence in an unpublished

opinion. State v. Wells, 2017-UP-417 (Ct. App. 2017). On January 18, 2018, a Petition

for Rehearing was denied. The Remittitur was sent on May 14, 2018,
Factual Background?

On October 31, 2013, the Laurens County Sheriff's Department responded to
a mobile home on River Hill Road in Enoree, SC and found David Lee Walker slumped
over on the porch swing. Deputies went inside the mobile home and found Johnny
Lee Cheeks? inside with a gunshot wound. Walker indicated he had been attacked by
two people he didn’t know. However, Cheeks told deputies that Walker shot him.
Cheeks later died and Walker survived.

Before deputies arrived, Cheeks was inside the mobile home with Kelly Ball.
Cheeks also sold drugs and hquor from his home. Sometime between 10:30PM and
11:00pm. someone knocked on the door. Cheeks went outside, had a verbal altercation
with someone, and then Ball heard gunshots. Ball called 911 and then went outside
to check on Cheeks. She found him lying on the ground and noticed another person
on the ground by Cheeks” Suburban SUV. She identified this person as Walker. Ball
also said she saw another person standing in the driveway that night and that that

person resembled Ty, a large, dark-skinned black male that she knew. However, she

t Twao other charges against Mr. Wells were dismissed after the trial, one was an Accessory Before the
Fact to a Felony charge (warrant number 2013A3010101766) and the other was Possession of a Stolen
Pistol charge (warrant 2014A3010100012). Neither of these charges was indicted.
? These facts are a summary of the facts written in the Final Brief of Appellant and the Final Brief of
Respondent.

t Not to be confused with the Shenff's investigator in this case whose last name is Cheek,
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ultimately identified the person in the driveway as being Mr. Wells.

Ball pulled Cheeks inside the trailer after the shooting and Cheeks handed her
his revolver and she put it under the mattress.

Ball watched the individual in the driveway turn and run up the hill and get
into the back passenger seat of a brown, older model box style car and leave. Officer
Ashley with the Laurens City Police Department received information that it was an
older model, dark blue car that had been involved in the shooting. Based on this,
Officer Ashley followed a blue car and found it parked at Mr. Wells girlfriend’s house.
Mr. Wells consented to a search of his car and nothing of evidentiary value was found
inside.

Toriz Moore saw her uncle (David Walker), Wells, and Johnny Lee Saxon
together on Halloween when they came to her house. Walker told Moore they needed
her gun because they were going to rob an old man who staved with a white lady and
sold liquor and drugs from his house. Moore did not have a gun and sent them away
empty handed.

A Lorein 380 semi-automatic handgun was found outside in the vard. Deputies
found three 380 shell casing in the yard and a slug inside the mobile home. SLED
was able to confirm that the slug came from the 380 found in the vard. SLED could
not however. confirm that the 380 casings came from the 380 found in the vard, but
all three casing came from the same gun.

II. CURRENT APPLICATION
In his initial application for PCR, Applicant alleged the following:
A. Ineffective Assistance of Counsel
1. Trial counsel provided “erroneous advice on which [Applicant] based
his decision not to testify.”
2. Trial counsel failed to object to Applicant’s indictments and failed to
preserve the issue for appellate court.
4. Failure to request a lesser-ineluded offense instruction.
4, "denving Applicant his right to an impartial jury...”
5. Failure to investigate
a. Failure to interview “victim's friend.”
6. Failure to “object and preserve applicant’s constitutional rights,
compulsory proecess right, and hearsay assertions.”
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7. Failure to communicate plea offer

8. Failure to be "specific in applicant’s directed verdict motion.”

9. Failure to prevent testimony indicating that a co-defendant was found

guilty of murder.

10. “[Flailure to object and preserve a[n] argument regarding the

limiting [ury] instruction.”

11. Appellate counsel “failed to raise on direct appeal Applicant’s

jurisdictional 1ssue.”

On or about December 4, 2023, Applicant amended his PCR application and

added the following allegations:

1. Ineffective Assistance of Counsel of Rodney W, Richey, Esquire:

d.

Failure to object to the sufficiency of the limiting instruction given
during the trial.

Failure to raise the issue that Theresa Loveless, one of the jurors,
goes to church with and knows Detective Cheek and did not
disclose this during jury selection.

Failure to object to the alternate juror being present in the jury
room during deliberations. See transcript p. 376, line 1 — p. 378,
line 19. The record does not reflect that the judge asked the
alternate to step out nor does the record reflect that the alternate
was excused.

Failure to adequately relay the plea offer made during the trial.
Mr. Mowry offered a plea to armed robbery with a dismissal of the
murder charge while the trial was in progress. However, the
Applicant had been served with LWOP notice prior to the trial
and Applicant was not sure if he took this plea offer that the
Solicitor meant for him to get hife without parole or to plead
straight-up with life taken off the table.

Failure to challenge or request further discovery from the
Solicitor’s office. There was a phone with text messages on it as
well as body camera video that was available that Mr. Saxon, the
Applicant’s co-defendant, was able to obtain through his attorney,
Ms. Aimee Zmroczek, but Mr. Richey never had.

Failure to move to have the case dismissed against the Applicant
because he was never read his Miranda rights when being
questioned on video.

Failure to adequately cross-examine Kelly Ball about her
inconsistent statements given to the police and her testimony in
trial,
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h. Failure to request a Neil v. Biggers hearing on the photo line-up.
1. Failure to request that Juror #10 be released after she got a ride
home from the sheriff's department.
II1. FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

This Court has reviewed the testimony presented at the evidentiary hearing,
observed the witnesses presented at hearing, and weighed the testimony accordingly.
Before the Court are the Applicant’s records from the South Carolina Department of
Corrections, the transcript of the Applicant’s trial, the records from the Laurens
County Clerk of Court regarding his convictions, Applicant’s appellate records, and
the original and amended applications for post-conviction relief. This Court has
reviewed the records submitted to 1t by the parties, including the affidavit of Mr.
Mowry, the legal arguments made by the attorneys, and the pleadings. This Court
has further had the opportunity to observe each witness who testified at the hearing,
and to closely pass upon their credibility. This Court has weighed the testimony
accordingly. Pursuant to SC Code §17-27-80, this Court makes the following findings

based upon all the evidence presented:

Ineffective Assistance of Counsel

In a PCR matter, the Applicant bears the burden of proving the allegations in

their application. Frasier v. State, 351 S.C. 385, 389, 570 S.E.2d 172, 174 (2002)

(citing Rule 71.1(e), SCRCP). Where 1neffective assistance of counsel 15 alleged as a
ground for relief, the Applicant must prove that "counsel's conduct so undermined the
proper functioning of the adversarial process that the trial cannot be relied upon as
having produced a just result.” Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 5.Ct.
2052, 2064, 80 L.Ed.2d 674, 692 (1984); Butler v. State, 286 5.C. 441, 334 5.E.2d 813
(1985).

The Apphcant must prove their allegations by a preponderance of the evidence.
SCRCP Rule 71.1(e).

In determining whether an allegation of ineffective assistance of counsel has
merit, the Court uses the two-prong test outlined in Strickland v. Washington. 466

US 668 (1984). First, an apphcant must show that counsel's performance was
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deficient. Strickland, 466 US at 687; Cherry v. State, 300 SC 115, 117, 386 S.15.2d

624, 625 (1989). Under this prong, attorney performance is measured by its
"reasonableness under professional norms." Cherry, 300 S.C. at 117, 385 S.E.2d at
625, eiting Strickland.

Second, counsel's deficient performance must have prejudiced the Applicant
such that "there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's unprofessional
errors, the result of the proceeding would have been different.” Cherry, 300 S.C. at
117-18, 386 S.E.2d at 625. “A reasonable probability is a probability sufficient to
undermine confidence in the outcome of trial.” Johnson v. State, 325 5.C. 182, 186,
480 S.E.2d 733. 735 (1997) (citing Strickland).

Issues Raised in the Initial PCR Application

In his initial PCR application, Mr. Wells raised numerous issues. (See Part I1,
Current Allegations, A. infra.) Most of these issues were not even mentioned or
discussed at the PCR hearing with the exception of the issue relating to the plea offer
that was given during the middle of his trial. The issue regarding the plea offer was
alzo raised in the amended PCR application and will be addressed below.

Mr. Richey did testify that he did not see any issue related to the indictments
or any reason to object to them. As to the issue relating to Mr. Richey allowing
testimony about Wells' co-defendant being convicted of the murder to come out in
Welle' trial, that testimony probably actually helped the Applicant in his trial. There
is no evidence that had that testimony not come out the outcome of the trial would
have been different.

With the exception of allegations 5, 7, and 10, the Court finds that the
Applicant failed to present any substantive evidence regarding the 1ssues written 1n
the initial PCR application at the PCR hearing. Because of this, the Court will not
address cach of these allegations in this order and finds that the Applicant waived
such allegations and failed to meet his burden of proof regarding them. Therefore,
these allegations are denied. The remaining issues of 5, 7. and 10 listed in Part A will
be addressed below.

Jssues Raised in the Amended PCR Application
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Failure to object to the sufficiency of the limiting instruction given during
the trial.

Applicant contends in his amended PCR application that Mr. Richey was
mmeffective 1n not objecting to the hmiting instruction given during Mr. Wells' trial.
Wells testified that Mr. Richey did not object to it. Mr. Richev stated that the
“transcript will reflect what happened.”

At some point during the trial, a reference was made to the fact that Mr. Wells
co-defendant, Mr. Walker, was also convicted of crimes related to the same incident.
Because of this, the trial judge gave a limiting instruction to the jury that is located
on page 358 of the transeript, lines 8-19. When asked by the trial court, Mr. Richey
indicates he did not have any additions or exceptions to the jury nstructions.
(Transcript page 377, lines 16-18.)

There was no argument presented by the Applicant as to how the outcome of
his trial would have changed had this instruction been objected to. Presumably, this
issue would have been preserved for appeal and could have been raised on appeal had
the instruction been objected to. However, there is nothing to indicate that this jury
charge was incorrect or not needed, nor is there anything to indicate that, had this
issue been briefed on appeal, the Applicant would have successfully had his conviction
overturned. Therefore, this allegation is denied.

Failure to raise the issue that Theresa Loveless, one of the jurors, goes lo
church with and knows Detective Cheek and did not disclose this during
jury selection.

Applicant presented no evidence at the PCR hearing regarding this allegation.
Ms. Loveless did not appear at the PCR hearing. Therefore, this allegation is dened.

Failure to object to the alternale juror being present in the jury room
during deliberations.

In support of this allegation, Mr. Wells cited page 376, lines 20-25 from the
transcript. Which in summary, is basically Judge Addy telling the jurors not to begin

deliberating until they are in receipt of the jury instructions. The record does not
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specihically show Judge Addy excusing any alternates. However, Judge Addy 15 a
well-seasoned jurist and it is highly unlikely that any alternate was allowed to stay
in the jury room once deliberations began. Proceedings in a court of general
jurisdiction will be presumed regular absent evidence to the contrary. State v, Grim,

341 S.C. 63, 533 S.E.2d 329 (2000) citing Pringle v. State, 287 S.C. 409, 339 S.E.2d

127 (1986). Here, Applicant presented no testimony or evidence that the alternate did
in fact participate in deliberations with the jury and has not met his burden regarding

this allegation. Therefore, this allegation 1s demed.
Failure to adequately relay the plea offer made during the trial.

At the PCR hearing, Mr. Wells testified that a plea offer was relaved to him
during his trial and that he believes the way it was relayed to him was ineffective
because he wasn't sure if it meant that the life without parole notice would be taken
off the table if he pleaded guilty. Applicant testified that he was confused about
whether the offer meant LWOP was off the table. Mr. Richey testified that throughout
his entire representation, Mr. Wells insisted on a trial and did not want to plead
guilty. Mr. Richey also noted that the plea offer meant LWOP was off the table and
that the State would let Wells plead during the middle of the trial. Mr. Richey advised
the Applicant to take the offer but Wells would not take it.

Regardless of Mr. Wells” understanding of the plea offer given during the trial,
he did not indicate that he would have taken the offer. Mr. Richey indicated that
during his entire representation of Mr. Wells that he did not want to plead guilty,
only to have a trial. There was no indication at the PCR hearing that Mr. Wells would
have even accepted this offer if he was clear on the parameters of it. Therefore, this
allegation 1s denied.

Failure to Investigate.
Mr. Wells has two co-defendants: Johnny Saxon and David Lee Walker. Walker

was tried first and found guilty of murder on February 27, 2015. (2014-GS-30-00228)
Walker was found not guilty of possession of a weapon during the commission of a

violent erime. (2014-(35-30-00229) Wells was tried after Walker. Saxon was tried last.
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Saxon's jury ended with a hung jury on the conspiracy charge and was ultimately
found not guilty on the remaining charges. Eventually the conspiracy charge was
nolle prossed. Saxon was represented by Ms. Zmroczek and John J. Delgado, Esquire.

This Court is interpreting the allegation of “Failure to challenge or request
further discovery from the Solicitor's office” as an allegation against Mr. Richev for
not adequately investigating Mr. Wells' case or reviewing the Discovery in-depth that
was made available to him or requesting further evidence from the State that would
have been obvious to request based on the Discovery that was given to Mr. Richey. At
the PCR hearing, the Applicant presented the testimony of Ms. Zmroczek in support
of this allegation.

It 1s well established that a criminal defense attorney has a duty to investigate,
but that duty is limited to a reasonable investigation. When evaluating the
reasonableness of counsel's conduct, the court should keep in mind that counsel's
function, as elaborated in prevailing professional norms, 1s to make the adversarial
testing process work in the particular case. Ard v. Catoe, 372 5.C. 318, 642 S.E.2d
590 (2007). Moreover, while the scope of a reasonable investigation depends upon a
number of issues, at a minimum, counsel has the duty to interview potential
witnesses and to make an independent investigation of the facts and circumstances
of the case. Id.

In Lounds v. State, 380 S.C. 454, 670 S.E.2d 646 (2008), the South Carolina

Supreme reversed the lower court and granted PCR relief when counsel failed to
conduct a reasonable investigation. The South Carolina Supreme Court held that a
reasonable investigation includes interviewing witnesses and conducting an
independent investigation of the facts of the case. Lounds, 380 S.C. at 460, 670 S.E.2d
at 649, See Ard v. Catoe, 372 8.C. 318, 642 S.E.2d 590 (2007). In McKnight, the South
Carolina Supreme Court held: "This Court has recognized that strategic choices made
by counsel after an incomplete investigation are reasonable 'only to the extent that
reasonable professional judgment supports the limitations on the nvestigation.™
McKnight v. State, 378 S.C. 33, 45, 661 S.E.2d 354, 360 (2008) (gquoting Von Dohlen
v. State, 360 S.C. 598, 607, 602 S.[5.2d 738, 743 (2004)).
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Mr. Richey testified that Mr. Wells was a difficult and combative client and
that he wouldn’t give Mr. Richey any information that would have helped him in his
representation of the Applicant. Mr. Richey did not have a case file with him at the
PCR hearing. Ms. Zmroczek testified that she represented the co-defendant, Mr.
Saxon. Her case file was available during Mr. Wells' PCR hearing. During her
representation of Mr. Saxon she was given photos of the crime scene. In those photos
she noticed that the officers had on bodveams (BWC), =0 she requested the hodveam
videos, She did not imitially receive all the hodycam videos and followed up with the
Solicitor to request the remaining missing bodveams. Mr. Mowry's affidavit supports
this statement by Ms. Zmroczek.

[t was after Ms, Zmroczek requested the remaining BWC and reviewed it, she
noticed that at one point a gun was found in the grass. (Applicant’s exhibits 7&8.) It
was only after she requested the remaining BWC that the issue with the gun in the
grass was known.

Ms. Zmroczek also realized there was a cell phone in the custody of law
enforcement that had not been reviewed that belonged to the vietim. She requested
the cell phone and had an expert extract the text messages off of it. (Applicant’s
exhibits 1&2.) The phone contained some text messages that could be considered
threatening in nature to the vietim in this case. Along with the issue related to the
gun in the grass, these messages are reasonable doubt and could have changed the
outcome of Mr. Wells' trial.

Ms. Zmroczek further noted that she had gone out to the scene herself on the
game date (but in 2013) and around the time the incident occurred and had taken
photos while there. She noted how incredibly dark it was and that in her mind, there
was no way Kelly Ball could have seen anyone up on the hill or in the street, let alone
the person driving the car. (See Applicant’s exhibit 5.) Ms. Zmroczek also made a map
that showed the path the car that was there during the crime had taken and the
locations of the other people supposedly involved in the erime. This court finds that
these exhibits and these efforts of Ms. Zmroczek also show reasonable doubt that Mr.

Richey did not explore in the trial of Mr. Wells.
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Taking in all the evidence that Ms. Zmroczek had that Mr. Richey likely would
have realized was missing had an adequate investigation been conducted, this Court

finds that Mr. Wells’ PCR should be GRANTED.

Failure to move to have the case dismissed against the Applicant because he
was never read his Miranda? righis when being questioned on video.

Applicant testified that law enforcement called him into an interview room and
he was not Mirandized when they started talking to him. Applicant did admit that
he talked to Mr. Richey about the 1ssue and that Mr. Richey advised ham that the
1ssue “wouldn’t amount to much.”

Under Miranda the US Supreme Court ruled that under the Fifth Amendment,

any statements that a defendant in custodv makes during an interrogation are
admissible as evidence at a eriminal trial only if law enforcement told the defendant
of the right to remain silent and the right to speak with an attorney before the
interrogation started. Mr. Wells didn't testify at his trial. Since Mr, Wells didn't
testifv and Mr. Wells statements to the police were not brought up during the trial,
Mr. Richey can’t be ineffective for not moving to suppress a statement that wasn't

even used during Mr, Wells's trial to begin with. Therefore, this allegation is denied.

Failure to adequately cross-examine Kellyv Ball.

Applicant alleges that Mr. Richey was ineffective in his cross examination of
Kelly Ball. Mr. Richey testified that he did not remember his cross examination of
Ms. Ball but that there was no guestion in his mind that Mr. Wells was present at
the scene and that trving to impeach Ms. Ball on that point would have been risky.

Ms. Zmroczek testified that Kelly Ball had been in and out of mental hospitals
prior to and after the evenis and that she had gotten her mental health records from
the ER and Marshall Pickens. Her impression of Ms. Ball was that Ms. Ball was very
mentally 11l and self-medicated as well as being bi-polar. Ms. Ball had stated she was

using drugs the day of the crime and gave multiple inconsistent statements. Ms.

S Miranda v, Arizona, 384 LIS 436 (1966).
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Zmroczek said 1t was her goal in cross examining Ms. Ball to show that Ms. Ball was
a drug addict and unstable, because her credibility was important to Mr. Saxon’s
trial. (See Applicant’s exhibits 3&4.) Ms. Ball's statements did not conform to the
evidence and Ms. Zmroczek noted that she was actually on the phone during the
whole ordeal, not just with 911 but with her mother. In the additional BWC footage
Ms. Zmroczek obtained, Ms. Ball's statement on it contradicted her statements given
later on as well as contradicting what she said she did during the phone call.

This 1ssue also relates to Mr. Richey's failure to investigate. Had Mr. Richey
obtained Ms. Ball's mental health records and had her statements given on the BWC,
Mr. Richev's cross-examination of Ms. Ball would have been more thorough and
possibly changed the outcome of Mr. Wells' trial. Mr. Richey was not able to articulate
any strategic decisions on the way he cross-examined Ms. Ball. Because of this, this

Court Ninds that Mr, Well's PCR should be GRANTED.

Failure to request a Neil v. Biggers’ hearing on the photo line-up.

Wells testified at the PCR hearing that he and Mr. Richey did not have a Neil
v. Biggers hearing as to whether the line up was adequate. Wells presented no
evidence that had a Neil v. Biggers had been held the outcome of his trial would have
been different.

The trial transcript indicates that Mr. Richey was not going to be bringing up
issues related to the photo line-up of Mr. Wells, and that he was not requesting a
hearing regarding whether the photo line-up was suggestive in nature, Transcript
page 119, line 21 — page 120, line 5. Applicant presented no evidence that the photo
line-up was unduly suggestive requiring Mr. Richey to request a Neil v. Biggers
hearing. Therefore, this allegation 1s denied.

Failure to request that Juror #10 be released after she got a ride home from
the sheriff’s department.

Mr. Wells did testify that at some point during the trial the shenff gave one of

5409 175 188 (1972),
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA pOINTHE COURT OF COMMON PLIAS
COUNTY OF LAURENS }oOFOR THE FIGHTH JUIICIAL CIRCLTT
}
Christopher 1. Wells, #1D3588 v Clase Neo 2009-0P-30-0431 34
i
Applicant, H
3 RESPONDENT'S MOTHIN TO ALTER OR
V., 3 AMEND THE ORDER GRANTING FOST-
} CONVIOTION RELIEF PURUSANT TO RULE
Siate of South Caroling, } B9{e), NURCP
j
Respondent, }
}
} 3 "::
This meaner comes before the Court by way of an applicabion by f}{iﬁ%&ﬂ@ﬂ'@;ﬁﬁwﬁéw%e?
SR L

{"PCR™) filed by Cheisiopher J. Wells (Applicant™ on February 19, 2019, H‘m Coyls ﬂ{f{;&'f‘::ﬁf:d
sy gvicentiney hearing into the matter o Noy ernber 38 2023, at the Newberrv (f&aam:; %tmci%;emw,
#pplicant was present st the hearing and represented by Ashley A Mc}w‘iﬁhaé; Mq %ach@m W
Jomes, of the South Caroling Attomey General’s Office, represented Respondent.

By order dated July 8, 3034, this Court granted post-conviction reliel 1o Applicant, The
order was filed by the Laurens Cossvy Clerk of Court on July 18, 2024, The Count found
Applicant’s wial counsel, Radney W. Richey, Esquire, was tnefleciive for fatling 10 perform an
adequate pre-iial investication snd for [piling 1o adegualely cross-examing Kelly Ball. one of the
State’s witnesses, The Count denjed aBf other allegations.  As reliell the Court ordered that
Agpplicant teceive g new trisl,

Respondent respectiully submits that the Court kas overlooked or misapprehonded material
points of faw and fact that secessitate the opposite result, Accordingly, pursuant 10 Rule 59l
SCRCP, Respondent now makes the following motion to alter ov amend the Count's order and asks
this Courl to issue a revised or amended order denying relief and finding that My, Richey was not

inedlective,
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i FAILURE TO INVESTICATE
The Cowt found Mr. Richey failed fo conduct an adequate pre-wrial investigation in the
case. This finding was based on the testimony of Aimee J. Zmroczek, Fsguire, the atforney whe
represented Applicant’s co-defendant. Johnny Saxon, regarding the investigations she undesionk
in preperation for Saxon’s wial. The Coun found Towr specific instances where Ms, Zmeocsek
obtained informetion that Mr. Richey cither did not ohiain or did not make use of at Apphicant’s
trinl: additional body-worn camera videos from the officers who responded to the scens; text
messages from the victim's phone; Ms. Amroczek’s own visit to the crime seene at night 1o gauge
ovw edark it wounld have been on the night of the murder, snd 5 map purporting to show the 'muge
taken by the getaway car and the locations of nther people “supposedly involved in the cnime.”
The Court found that Mr. Richey's performance was delicient because, had Mr, Richey mere
thoroughly investigated the case, he “likely would have realized” the above cvidence was
“missing.” The Couwt’s order appears 0 seeept Applicsnt’s argiment that be was prejudiced by
the absence of these fowr pieces of evidence because Ms. Imrocrek's client was alitmmcly

seguitied of the armed robbery charge while Applicant was convicted.
Respondent respectfully contends thal there are several serious flaws with the Court’s

analysis. First of all, it must be noted that Apphicant ond Johnny Saxon were not similatly situped

1
o

defendants. The evidence against Applicant was ar stronger than the evidence apainst Saxon
Within seconds of the shooting, the State’s witness Kelly Ball tesufied she looked oul the
door of the Vietim’s trailer and saw Applicani standing “eight to ten feet away” in the yard, (Tr.
p. 132, line 20). She testilied she could see Applicant’s face for approximately {ifleen seconds
breause hie ok several steps backward before turning around and munning toward the getaway

car. {1 p13, Hne 24-p 133 line 63 Later. she was able 1o pick him owt of ¢ photographic
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tineup. (Tr. pp.144-47; pp.291-92) By contrast, Kellv Ball never claimed w have seen Johnoy
Saxon at the scene and candidly admitted she could nos tell who else may have been inside the
getaway car, (1o p i3, lines F-31 At Saxon's trial, Ball expressly testilied that she never saw
Johnoy Saxon atall. (Applicant’s Ex, 3, p.38, liney 2-3).

After calling 911, Kelly Ball gave n description of the getaway vehicle, Gilicer Andrew
Ashley testified be was driving north on Highway 101 when he heard a description of the car over
the radio. {Tr. p.213-14). He then observed a vehicle that maiched the deseription heading south
on Highway 101, and he urned sround and began following i (Te. p.2 143 Dhe vehicle eventuatly
trned fefl from Highway 101 onto Pleasant View Divive, (Tr p226: p. 2291 Along with Depuy
Jeremy MchMaban, Ashley followed the vehicle w o residenve on Jones i Rood, aad Medahan
knocked on the door, (Tr. p218Y Applicant was ipside. {Tre pp 218190 ;\pp%ﬁ@ns admitted he
had been driving the car, claiming he was coming from a female friend’s house in Spartanburg:
however, he refused w give the “friend’'s” name or addsess and seemed “very vague and reluciant.”
{¥Fr. pp 230-31) Meither officer mentioned seeing Johany Saxon in the car or a1 the house.

The following day. Anionio Mormris was walking at the comer of Highway 107 and Pleasant
View drive when he found a discarded wallet lying on the side of the road. (Tr. p273). Inside the
wallet was a single dolter bill and the 1Y of the vietim, Johnsy Lee Chesbs (Tr 2761 Afer
hearing from his aunt that 8 man named Cheeks had been kilied, Morris aleried Taw enforcement
and led Officer Bryant Cheek to the wallet, which was cellected as evidence. (11, p.277-78;
p.293). Kelly Ball identifted the waﬁ%ﬂ as belonging to the victim and conlirmed that the victim's
1> was inside, although she testified that there were thousands of dolars inside the wallet when

she last saw the vietim using it {Tr. p.124-25) The wallet was lound within a mile of the house
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on Jones Hill Road where Anplicant was slaving, bu! more than eight miles from the site of the
shooting. (1T, p.290). Nothing connected the fogation of the wallet with Jobnny Saxon, however,

The only evidence implicating j‘{li}]ltﬁ}' SExon ns a co-conspirator in the mueder and armed
sobbery of the victim wﬁ% the testimony of Toris Moore. niece of the third co-defendant, David
Walker. Moore testified that, on the evening of Getober 31, 2013, prior 1o the shooting, Walker.
Applicant, and Saxen came 10 see her in Applicant’s ear. {Tr. pp. 10914 p 112} Walker speke
lo her and told her the three of them wore planning (o rob & drug desler who lived with o white
woman i Fnoree, (v, p. 110, pp.115-16). Walker stated Applicant already had a gun 1o use in
the robbery, but he asked Moore if she could give them ap additional gun. (Tr. pp 11011 p116)
Moere did not want 1o get involved, s she wid Walker she did not bave s gua. (Tr. p 111 Moore
identified the car the men arrived in as Applicant’s car, (Tr. pi12% Alhough Walker did the
taiking and Applicant provided the car and the gun, Moore never testified iu Saxon doing anything
other than accompanying the other two men in the vehicle,

Clearly, the evidence against Applicant was for stronger than the evidence apainst Saxon,
The sole evewitness saw Applicant’s face for zséx-ﬁrssi seconds gl the erime scene, picked him out
of a liteup. and described his car to the police with cnough specificity that Officer Ashley was
able to follow a matching car to the house where Applicant was staying, The next day, the victim's
wallet, sans cash. was found near Applicant’s residence along the very same path that Ashicy had
followed Applicant’s vehicle the night before. Finally, the codefendant Walker told his niece that
Applicant had provided the gun they were plunoing to use in the robbery. In light of all this
evidence, Mr. Richey faced a much different and more difficalt fask in defending Applicant than
s, Zmroesek faced in defending Saxen. The specific actions taken by Ms. Zmroczek to defend

her client, therefore, are totally frrelevant o the guestion of whether Mr. Richey provided
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constitutionally adequate representation for Applicant: her performance should not be reated as a
“checklist for judicial evaluation of sttorney performeance.” Strickiond v, Washingron, 466 1.5,
668, 688 (1984), “Ihere are countless ways o provide effective assislance in any piven case,
Even the best eriminal defense attorneys would not defend a particutar client in the same way ™
Id & GBS, Much fess, therefore, should different attorneys be expecied w defend differenr clients,
with materiaily different cuses, in the same way.'

In addition, none of the [our additional tems of “evidence” Ms. Zmrocvek obtained would
have made any difference at Applicant’s trial. Therefore, Mr. Richey was notdeficient for falling
10 investigate them. and Applicant was not prejudiced by Mr. Richey’s failure o present them at
gl Taking cach item in uen:

Body-worns camers videos
The Court’s order chides Mr. Richev for not obtaining body-wom camera footage From

addisional officers who respended o the crime scene.  However, the addiiional foolage was

' The Court’s onder cites Lownds v. Stare, 380 5.0, 454, 670 S.E.24 646 (2008), and McKnight v
State, 378 8.0, 33, 661 S.1.24 354 (2008}, in support of ity finding thar Mr. Richey's failure to
more thoroughly investigate Applicant’s case was deficieni. Bath of those cases are casily
distinguishable,

In Loundy, wial counsel had not even spoken o his client until the morsing of rial. His
client told Bm of several potential defense witnesses, but at that point & was ton tate for them (o
be subpoenged. Here, on the other hand, there was no dispute that Me Richey met with Apphican
only defense Applicant was willing 1o give was to insist thay afl three codefendants were innocent,
which was not a plausible defense because David Walker was found by police at the crime scene
and had already been convivied of murder and armed robbery arising from his participation in the
crime.  This case is clearly unlike Lounds, wheve the defendant attempted to ofler a plausible
defense but was thwarted by his attorney s failure to mest with him in a tmely tashion.

In MeKnight, trial counsel presenied the westimony of two expert witnesses, One was vary
felplis o the defense, bin the other was not helpful and even offered some westimony that was
inconsistent with the theory of the defense, The first viel ended in 8 mistrial. At the second trial.,
counsel agoin pat forward the unhelpfiul witness but feifed 1w put forward the favorable withess,
Understandably, the Suprerne Court held irial counsel's performance in thal case was deficient,
Nothing remotely similar happened in Applicant™s case.
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essentiatly duplicative of the [ootmge played a1 Appiicant’s wial. Counsel cannot have been
deficient, nor can Applicant have been prejudiced, ‘mwel}f by the fathwe o present %ta]jy
cumulative evidence at trial.

M. Zmroczek claimued the additional body-wom camera footage depiced officers picking
up & gun at the scene of the erime, wiping fingerprings off of it and then placing it back on the
ground. Counsel for Respondent has viewed all of the bndy-wom camera videos that were
provided in this case an& contends that sese of them show anvthing to do with the Bnding of a
gun, much less any purported tampering. 1t appears that the Court is also uncoavineed by Ms.
Zrroczek’s account of the viden's contenis: the Cowt's order dogs not go as far as 10 accuse
officers of tampering with evidence, Rather, the order vaguely declares that the videos show “at
one point a gun was found in the grass.” an occurrence which (1) is adw vot shown in the v&de{}?
and (2} was not even 2 contesied fssue in either Applicant’s or Saxon’s trial. sinee B is totally
undisputed that & pun was found in the yard outside the viclim's house. Respondent respectiully
argues that the Court’s finding of ineffective assistance based on the body-worn camera footage
lacks evidentiary support.

Text messages on the vietim's p%lnﬁe

Ms. Zmtoczek informed the Cpurt ihat she arranged for an expert to extract Lex! Messages
From the Victim's cell phone. The Court’s order vaguely states that “soine text mesmlées;. .. could
be considercd threstening to the victim in this case,” apparently based on Ms. Auwoczek's
restimony that she believed the texis were death threats sent 1o the victim by a jealous Jover named
Teresa, In effect, Ms. Zmorczek argued that the texts were cvidence of third-party guilt,
Respondent contends the texts in question could not possibly sapport that interpretation.

The three texts at issue (Apphicant’s Ex. 1 and 2} staie:
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9:22 PM: Hey this is weresa vour dont bave to He if you with your Hi
ho kelly just be a man aboew it and tell me so dont be sacred love
you

938 PM: You poing down

FH07 PM: The trueth will set vou free love vou and sich of the
games vour playing with me

lerrors in original]. While these lexts convey o tone of annoyance, none of them arise o an express
ar even an implied threat of viclence, Two of them even include the words “love you.” which are
not words typically included in a death threat. The three-word 1ext “You going down™ s, al best,
extremely vague, but in the context of the earfier and later lexis it cannot possibiy be read as
threatening physienl violence,

In addition, Ms. Zmegesek’s theory of third-party guilt Is impossible to reconcile with the
facts of this case. David Walker was found a1 the scene of the erime, hieﬂdéng from a gunshot
wound inflicted by the viciim. The victim himself lived long enough to tell the police that Walker
was the man who shot him and that the motive for the shooting was a robhery. Toris Moore
testified that Walker was planning to rob the victim eartier that day. along with %‘xgxgﬁécant, Fhe
victim's wallet was stolen and found severa! miles away with most of the money removed. Walker
was ultimately convicted of murder and armed robbery, The idea that the shooting was actually
perpetrated by this “Teresa.” and that the motive was something other than armed robbery. iy
totatly unbelievable, sspeciatly when the only evidence n support of that theory are three vaguch
worded text moessages, See. eg. Stafe v Brown, 437 5.0 5534, 366 70, 878 5.E.2d 564, 373-73
(CL App. 2022) (explaining the history of South Carolina’s rules concerning the admissibility of
third-party guilt and holding that “bare suspicions” and “conjectural inferences™ that another may
have commitied the crime are not sulficienty

Personal shservitions at the crime seene

Page 7 of 13




552

‘The Court further found Mr. Richey was inefective for {uiling o go to the crime scene, as
Ms. Zmroczek did, and to examine for himsell the fack of visibiiity at night. The Court recites
Ms. Zinrovzek's testimony that, "in ber mind, thess was no way Kelly Ball could have seen anyone
up on the kil or is the streed, let alone the person driving the car.” {emphasis added), This passage
suggests that both Ms. Zmroczek and the Court misundersicod the westimony given at Appiicant’s
trial, Ball did porclaim that she saw Applicust “up on the Bill™ or “in the siseel.” and she expressly
denied seeing anyone inside the car. However, she clearly wnifiod thet Applicant was only “eight
to ten feet” nway from the porch when she saw him. At that distance. Applicant would certaindy
have been sufliciently illuminated for Ball to make out his featsres.  Although the videos ken
from the responding officers” budy-worn cameras are not iiigh«quaiiiy; they clearly depict that the
ares near the porch and immediately in front of the tratler is iHumisated by a porch light and two
bright floadights on either side of the wailer. Moreover, Kelly Ball's identification of Applicant
was cotroborated by Toris Moore's testimony that Applicant was with Walker when the robbery
was being planned, by Ashlev and McMahan's estimony that they followed a car matching the
description given by Kelly Ball and discovered that it was being driven by Applicant, and by
Morris and Cheek's testimony that the stolen wallet was found within a mile of Applicant’s house
along the route Applicant was driving on the night of the murder. For Kelly Ball o have been
mistaken in her identification of Applicant would require all of these other facts v he cither
complete fabrications or a string of cutrageous colncidences: cither possibility beggars beliell

Tlags

Finally, the Court noies that Ms, Zmroczek prepared & map that “showed the path the car

that was there during the crime had taken and the locations of the other people supposedly invoived

in the crime,” preswmably referring 10 Applicant’s exhibit 6. However. there was no festimony
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presented af the evidentiary hearing explaining how Ms, Zmrocrek came up with this magp bow
she determined the puih supposediy 1aken by the car, or why her map should be deemed zny more
accnrate or informatve then the map used 21 Applicant’s tial. Nor does the Coun’s order propose
any such cxplepation. On the contran, Applicant’s exhitit & incxplicably Teaves out the entire
Cray Count area, incloding Highway 101 and the sireets leading 1o Applicant’s residence, from the
purported “path” of the getaway cur. This s wetally inconsistent with the detpiled festinwny by
(Fcer Ashicy and Dieputy Meliahan regarding thelr pursuit of the suspect vehicic from Highway
107 cme Pleasant View Drive and, ulttoaiely. 1o the house where Applicant wos dayving,

The fct that the “path™ plotted by Applicants exhihit 6 appears to culminate in ihe
residence of a “Teresa Builer™ strongly sugeesis Ms, Zmroceck concociod this map, act because
i1 better 0t the evidence of the route whken by the zetaway car, bud merely 1o fond credibiin w her
theory that the victim was sctealhy murdersd by someone namgd ~Teresa™ in o it of romaniic
jealousy. The implausibility of this theory has already been discussed.

Ulsimatety, none of the four items ef evidence mentdoned by the Court as things My, Richey
should have doweloped through pre-iriel investigation wowid heve made any difference w the

outceme of Applicant’s tial.” Therelore, Respondent respectiully asks the Count 1o pmend i

* Om two occesinns. the Court's order states that the evidence vould have created a “reasonable
doute.” Respendent contends this is net Hiely: mose imposiantly, Bowever, it is not the moper
standard for evaluating prejudice in the context of an inefiective assisiance of eounsel claim.
Rather. the burden is on Appiicand 1o show, by & grepoaderence of the evidence, tha the leck of
thesz four adgitional nems of informaton ameunied o denving him a Tair el Bades v Seare,
286 S.C. 441, 442, 334 S.E2A R13, 814 (1983 Rule 71.1{e) 3CRCP. 1t is not enough for the
defepdant to show that the ermors had some conceivabic ¢ffect upon the oucome of the
proceeding.” Strickfand, 466 U.S. at 693, Rather, the “defendant must show thi there 5 2
reasomable probabiliy that, bat for counsel's unprofessional errars. the resull of the provesding
would have been different. A reasonable probebility 5 a probability sefficient o undermine
confidence in the outcome.™ Fd at 694,
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order and 1o fnd that Applicant has nol met his burden of proving that he is entitled to post-
conviction reliel as to this ssue.
1. FAILURE 7O CROSS-EXAMINE KELLY BALL

In its order, the Court also finds Mr. Richey was ineffective for failing o cross-examine
Kelly Bailt based on her menta! healih records and drug use. Respondent sespecifully contends the
Court has overlooked material poims of fact and law in regards o this inding. Again, there s no
constitutional requirement that, just because Ms, Zmroczek chose to pursue a cerlain cross-
examination stratepy, Mr, Richey had 1o do so as well” Although My, Richey did not focus his
guestioning of Kelly Ball on her inental health history, he did cross-examine her and successfully
clicited testimany from her on several important points, including the fact that she had tried o
conceal the victim's gun under the bed before the police arrived; the fact thay, according 1o Ball,
the victim went outside willingly to meet Applicant and Walker just before the shooting: the fact
that she initially deseribed the man she saw standing in the vard as resembling somebody she know
named “Ty™ the fact that her description of the suspect as g “dark-skinned, large man™ more
closely describes Ty than it does Applicant; the fact that Ty was invelved in the victim’s drug
desling business: the fact that drug desling is an inkerently dangerous occupation: the fzet that
drug dealers often get it arguments and carry weapons: the fact that the victim knew "tons” of
dangerous guys to buy “dope” from: the fact that "it’s not o mystery” the vietim wes shot by David

Walker: the fact that she did not recall ever being shown a photo Hoeup with Ty in it the {get that

F The Courl's order itself acknowledges that Me, Richey testified he thought wrving 1o impeach
Kelly Ball conceming Applicant’s presence at the scene of the erime would be “risky™ because
Mr. Richey was personally convinced Applicant had been present. However. the Count’s order
goes on o state that “Mr. Richey was nont sble to articulate any strategic decisions on the way he
cross-examined Ms. Ball,” This finding atly contradicts the Cowt’s cavlier statement regarding
Mr. Richey's testimony.
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she never menlioned hearing anything abowt a robbery in her first statement o poliee: the fact that
she told police the car was brown, when the other witnesses deseribed it as gray, silver, ar blue:
and the fact thal she could not see whe was in the car or how many people were in the car. {Tr.
pp. 14862}, In addition, Kelly Ball had already testified on direet examination that she used drags.
(Tr. p.i21, lings 19-23), It is not clear that merely bringing up Ball’s history of treatmeni for
bipolar disorder would have meaninefully increased the strength of Mr. Richey's cross-
EXATIAon,

The Court also states that Ball “gave multiple inconsistent siatements.” that her testimony
“did not conform 19 the evidence,” and that hor statements on the body-worn vamera foolage
contradicled her later written statements and her westimony at trial. However. the Court does not
provide any specific examples of contradictions or inconsistencies. As already shown., Mr. Richey
successfully exposed numerous minor inconsistencies and contradictions between Hall's own
statemienis and the other evidence at wmwial: the Cour’s order does not explain what other
inconsistencies Mr, Richey should have pressed her on or how his failure (o do so amosmed (o a
deprivation of Applicant’s right o a fair trial.

Finally, a8 discussed above, Keily Ball's identification of Applicant is suongly
corroborated by the other svidence at tial. In both Saxon's il and Applicant’s trial, Ball was
abie tr explain awny the minor inconsistencies pointed out by Mr, Richey and Ms, Zimroczek ag
resufting from the extreme siress she was cxperiencing at the fime of the crime, as well as the faey
that she saw Applicant and his car under a mercwry Hght, which caused colors to appear different
than they would appear under natural light. For all ol these reasons, E{espo.ra(h:m respectially
submits that Applicant has not met his burden of proviag that, but for My Riches 's Labure 1o more

thoroughly cross-examime Kelly Ball, there is a reasonable likelilood that the resabt of his rlal
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would have beern different. Therclore. Respondent asks that the Court issue an amended order

finding thai Applicant has not shown he Is entitied to post-conviction relief as w this issue.

lconclusion and signature on following page]
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IH., CONCLUSION
Based on all the foregoing, Respondent respectfully contends that Applicant his not met
his burden of proving ineflective assistance of counsel and that the Court’s decision 1o grant post-
conviction relief is based on material errors of fact and Jaw. Accordingly. Respondent respectfully
asks this Court fo issue a revised or amended vrder denying and dismissing Applicant’s post-

conviction relicl action with prejudice.

Respectiully submitted,

ALAN WILSON
Attorney General

WOIEFFREY YOHUNG
Chiel Peputy Atlorney General

DON J. ZELENKA
Deputy Attorney General

- ZATHARY % JONES
Assistant Attorney Generg]

Hy:
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STATE OF 50UTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF LAURENS

N THE COLRT OF COMMON PLEAS
2OT8CP- 3000134
CHRISTOPHER 1 WELLS, #193588
Apgicars,
e AFFIDAYIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL
STATE OF SOUTH CARDLING,

Eospondens,

LI .

1. f o an epdoyer of the Respon

2 Reulay cormunieation by mail exists throughowt the Siate of Bouth Cartbng wrid
that [his i & proper clrewmsianee of sdrvice: 13;{ ki

L3 ! have this dav sesved a copy of e Res
E}rﬁw i;mmﬁn& Pogt-Convigiion Rellef
-aptiened mafter on the Tollowing porsen By depositieg P ﬂ‘m lﬁﬁﬁm

Si‘%&?ﬁ mail, pﬂ&i&g@ prapaid:

Anliley A Mehiahun, lﬁi;mm:a e
MeMshis Low, LLC © - o &7
PO Bux 50536
Columbia, SC 29256 &

BATED tis 24™ day of July 324,
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A AN W s
ATI0RNEY CIEMERAL.

July 29, 2024

The Honorable Michelle Simmons
Laurens County Clerk of Court
PO Box 287

{ murens, 5C 29360-0287

Re:  Christopher J. Wells, #193588 v, Statc of South Carelian
2019.0P-30-00134
[esr Ms. Simmons:

Enclosed please find the Respondemt’s Motion to Alter or Amend the Order

CGraming Post-Conviction Relief Pursuant to Rule 59{e), m the sbove-captioned case, for
filing w your office,

Sincerely,

Zgehary W . :
Angrey General
A
FA AG e
Enclosure T
S
eo.  Ashley A McMsahas, Esquire :

g5V 9 I U

Brmpenv O oS BT OING o POt OFRCE Bon 13589 e UooimEsa %2821 -159Y « Trirmama BU3-734-3078 o Eacsnmil 8M1-I5L.6783




STATE OF S0UFPH CAROLINA
COUNTYOF LAURENE.
Christophar J. Wells, #108588,
Applicant,
V.
fitate of Bouth Corolina,

Eespondent.

St

560

COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

FOR THE 2 JUDICIAL CIRCIHT
Case Moo 2018-CPA0-00134

ORDER DENYING
SCHCP ph(e) MUTION

This putter s }hefmje the Court by way of a Pest-Convietion Helief Application
filed By Christopher 4. Wells on or abust February 19, 2019, and amended on
Viegember 4, 2048, On July 8, 3024, the undevsipned signed an order granting post-

posreiction relief in this matter.

{in o about August 8§, 2084, the Bimte fled o motion (o revonsider pursuant to

BORCP 5Be). After pavofil considerniion of the record and evidence presented hefore

the Court, this motion is denied,
AND P18 80 ORDERED!

B Avey Hiwax |
PRESIDING %‘, ROEHY éz

Pags 1ot |



Jadly 21, 2026

Kirhslle Simmons
Laurens County Clerk of Conzt
Atta: PCHe
PO Bex 287 -
Laurens, 8C 28380-0257
fz:  Chesiopher . Wells, #193588 va. State of Bouth Caroling
2015 OR300 34

Danr Madam Clerk

e Order Denving the State’s 5} Motion, Kin
d eopy back th ne in the enclogad envelope.
Sheuld you have any guestions § san be roached st the numbey fisgedd bolow or ot
ashleyBmemahanlawsecom. '

Blenae find eociesed a 5
thig teder and send & ek

Rest regurds,

et 1

Asurey A McManan
ATTORWEY AT LawW

AAM
eer  Christopher J. Wells

AAG Zachary Jones {via smadl}
Enclosure

Shudabels 3 1 TIHIM Y

_ P @ Box 50536 - Colgmpia, 5C 28250
Tel BO3-218-1910 - Fax BDA-210-4573 . VAW MOMANANLARWELD COM
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16:07:15 Thursday, March 14, 2019 570

CMTI330D SCDC OFFENDER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 03/14/19
OMCOMITA RELEASE DATE SCREEN C056427
SCDC# > 193588 LOC: PERRY

WELLS, CERISTOPHE JERMAINE SCDC CLASSIFICATION..: VIOLENT

OFFENDER TYPE...: ADULT-STRAIGHT SENTENCE SEXUAL REGISTRY..: N

SEXUAL PREDATOR..: NOT APP
DNA STATUS.......: COMPLETED
GPS REQUIREMENT..: N

PREA DECISION....:

PREA VICTIM..... : HIGH VULNERABLE PREA PERP..: NONE
CURRENT SENTENCE: CONSECUTIVE SENTENCE ..:
LIFE CURRENT SENT START DATE: 12/13/2013

PROJECTED COMPLETION DATES

MAXOUT DATE .....: 99/99/9999 CURRENT EWC

YOA SIX YEAR DATE: CURRENT EEC
INITIAL PAROLE DATE: 00/00/0000 NEXT PAROLE HEARING DATE: 00/00/0000
TOTAL GT DAYS EARNED .......: 000000 LABOR CREW/WORK PROG DATE: 99/99/9999
TOTAL EARNED WORK CREDITS ..: 000000 LABOR CREW DISQ REASON:
TOTAL EDUCATION CREDITS ....: 000000 CATEGORY 4 OR 5 OFFENSE
TOTAL EXTRA EARNED CREDITS .: 000 SUPERVISED REENTRY DATE..: 00/00/00
TOTAL SERVICE TIME EARNED ..: 000000 B

PFKEYS: 5:HISTORY OF DATE CHANGES



o5/1




Classing Summary Reports - Report View

ol Lot s

SENTENCE SENTENCE
CURRENT OFFENSES YRS MOS DYS COUNTY START  V/NV CAT INDICT
CRIMINAL CONSPIRACY 5 0 0  LAURENS  12/13/2013 N 2  15GS300505
ARMED ROBBERY 999 99 999 LAURENS  12/13/2013 V 4  15GS300504
FIREARMS PROVISION o o 0  LAURENS  12/13/2013 N 3  15GS300503
SENTENCE SENTENCE

COMPLETED OFFENSES YRS MOS DYS COUNTY START V/NV CAT INDICT
SMUG/POSS CONTRABAND PRI 2 0 0  RICHLAND 06/12/1997 N 3 984023495
VOLUNTARY MANSLAUGHTER 25 0 0  GREENVILLE  08/04/1992 V 4  92GS6543
PRIOR COMMITMENTS OVER 90 DAYS:

*INMATE HAS NO PRIORS*

SENTENCE SENTENCE

PREVIOUS OFFENSES PREVSCDCID YRS MOS DYS COUNTY ~ START V/NV CAT INDICT
DISORDERLY CONDUCT 00188457 O O 30 GREENVILLE06/10/1992 N 1  92466-
MOVING TRAFFIC VIOL 00188457 O O 30 GREENVILLE 06/10/1992 N 1  92530-
FAILURE TO APPEAR 00188457 O O 30 GREENVILLE 06/10/1992 N 1  92530-
DETAINERS (HOLD,WANTED,NOTIFY):
ABANDONMENT/NON-SUPPORT HOLD  PRESIDING JUDGE CATEG:1
ESCAPES:

*NO ESCAPE HISTORY*
CRIMINAL CHARGES:

*NO CRIMINAL CHARGES HISTORY*
ASSAULTIVE DISCIPLINARIES:

STRIKING AN EMPLOYEE WITH/WITHOUT MAJOR DISC. STAFF
09/09/1999 \eapoN DISMISSED yearInNG ASSAULT N
PREVIOUS ASSAULTIVE DISCIPLINARIES:

*NO PREVIOUS ASSAULTIVE DISCIPLINARY HISTORY*

NON-ASSAULTIVE DISCIPLINARIES:

07/20/2016 REFUSING OR FAILING OBEY ORDERS DISMISSED MAJOR DISC. HEARING
07/20/2016 POSS. OR/ATTEMPT TO POSSESS CELL PHONE DISMISSED MAJOR DISC. HEARING
11/02/2006 FIGHTING WITHOUT A WEAPON CONVICTED ADMINISTRATIVE RESOLUTION
07/18/2004 SEXUAL MISCONDUCT CONVICTED MINOR DISC. HEARING
10/05/2003 SEXUAL MISCONDUCT CONVICTED MAJOR DISC. HEARING
09/18/2003 THREATENING TO INFLICT HARM ON EMPLOYEE CONVICTED MAIJOR DISC. HEARING
08/06/2003 USE OBSCENE,VULGAR,PROFANE LANG/GESTURES ~ CONVICTED MAJOR DISC. HEARING
01/21/2003 FIGHTING WITHOUT A WEAPON CONVICTED MAIJOR DISC. HEARING
12/16/2001 DAMAGE,DESTROY,PROP.VALUE AT $100./MORE  CONVICTED MINOR DISC. HEARING
08/16/2001 1/M UNDER INFLUENCE/POSS ALCOHOL OR BUCK ~ DISMISSED MINOR DISC. HEARING
05/06/2001 OUT OF PLACE CLOSED  OTHER ACTION TAKEN/INFORM
04/19/2001 POSSESSION OF CONTRABAND CONVICTED MINOR DISC. HEARING
02/12/2001 REFUSING OR FAILING OBEY ORDERS DISMISSED MINOR DISC. HEARING
02/11/2001 REFUSING TO WORK DISMISSED MINOR DISC. HEARING
10/22/2000 DAMAGE,DESTROY,PROP.VALUE AT $100./MORE ~ DISMISSED MINOR DISC. HEARING
04/10/2000 FIGHTING WITHOUT A WEAPON NOT GUILTY MAJOR DISC. HEARING
02/05/2000 OUT OF PLACE CONVICTED MINOR DISC. HEARING
01/28/2000 USE OBSCENE, VULGAR,PROFANE LANG/GESTURES ~ CONVICTED MAJOR DISC. HEARING

https://www.doc.state.sc.us/classing-reports/summaryReports.do

3/14/2019



Clasgzaxmmary Reports - Report View

12/15/1999
10/03/1999
07/25/1999
07/20/1999
06/22/1999
05/08/1999
05/07/1999
03/10/1999
03/10/1999
11/14/1998
08/12/1998
06/24/1998
05/31/1997
01/31/1997
01/31/1997
01/31/1997
03/22/1994
08/19/1993
07/02/1993
07/02/1993

02/21/2019
02/21/2019
01/14/2019
01/14/2019
01/10/2019
01/09/2019
05/07/2018
05/07/2018
03/26/2018
03/26/2018
03/14/2018
03/01/2018
02/28/2018
02/26/2018
02/26/2018
02/02/2018
02/02/2018
01/22/2018
01/22/2018
01/12/2018
01/12/2018
01/05/2018
01/05/2018
12/18/2017
12/18/2017
10/09/2017
08/02/2017
08/02/2017

FIGHTING WITHOUT A WEAPON
REFUSING OR FAILING OBEY ORDERS

REFUSING TO WORK

REFUSING TO ATTEND COMPULSORY PROGRAM

SEXUAL MISCONDUCT

THREATENING TO INFLICT HARM ON EMPLOYEE
REFUSING OR FAILING OBEY ORDERS

OUT OF PLACE

INCITING/CREATING A DISTURBANCE
FIGHTING WITHOUT A WEAPON

REFUSING TO WORK

REFUSING OR FAILING OBEY ORDERS

POSSESSION OF CONTRABAND

THREATENING TO INFLICT HARM,ON INMATE
THREATENING TO INFLICT HARM,ON INMATE

USE OBSCENE,VULGAR,PROFANE LANG/GESTURES
REFUSING OR FAILING OBEY ORDERS
INCITING/CREATING A DISTURBANCE

OUT OF PLACE

FIGHTING WITHOUT A WEAPON

PERRY

KIRKLAND

PERRY
KIRKLAND

PERRY
PALMETTO RCHLAND
PERRY

KIRKLAND

PERRY

KIRKLAND

PERRY
KIRKLAND INFRM
PALMETTO RCHLAND
PERRY
KIRKLAND

PERRY
RICHLAND CO
PERRY

KIRKLAND

PERRY
RICHLAND CO
PERRY
ANDERSON CO
PERRY

KIRKLAND

PERRY

BROAD RIVER
RICHLAND CO

PREVIOUS NON-ASSAULTIVE DISCIPLINARIES:
*NO PREVIOUS NON-ASSAULTIVE DISCIPLINARIES HISTORY*
HISTORY OF MOVEMENTS:

INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
AUTH ABSENCE (AWL)
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
AUTH ABSENCE (AWL)
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
AUTH ABSENCE (AWL)
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
AUTH ABSENCE (AWL)
INCARCERATED
AUTH ABSENCE (AWL)
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
AUTH ABSENCE (AWL)

NOT GUILTY
CONVICTED
CLOSED

CLOSED

CONVICTED
CONVICTED
CONVICTED
DISMISSED
CONVICTED
CONVICTED
DISMISSED
DISMISSED
CONVICTED
CONVICTED
CONVICTED
CONVICTED
CONVICTED
CONVICTED
CONVICTED
CONVICTED

Page 3 of 5

MAJOR DISC. HEARING
MINOR DISC. HEARING

OTHER ACTION TAKEN/INFORM
OTHER ACTION TAKEN/INFORM

MAJOR DISC.
MAJOR DISC.
MINOR DISC.
MAJOR DISC.
MAJOR DISC.
MINOR DISC.
MINOR DISC.
MINOR DISC.
MAJOR DISC.
MAJOR DISC.
MAJOR DISC.
MINOR DISC. HEARING
MINOR DISC. HEARING
MINOR DISC. HEARING
MINOR DISC. HEARING
MINOR DISC. HEARING

HEARING
HEARING
HEARING
HEARING
HEARING
HEARING
HEARING
HEARING
HEARING
HEARING
HEARING

ADMINISTRATIVE
MEDICAL
ADMINISTRATIVE
MEDICAL
ADMINISTRATIVE
MEDICAL
ADMINISTRATIVE
MEDICAL
ADMINISTRATIVE
MEDICAL
ADMINISTRATIVE
MEDICAL
MEDICAL
ADMINISTRATIVE
MEDICAL
ADMINISTRATIVE
MEDICAL
ADMINISTRATIVE
MEDICAL
MEDICAL
MEDICAL
ADMINISTRATIVE
MEDICAL
ADMINISTRATIVE
MEDICAL
ADMINISTRATIVE
ADMINISTRATIVE
MEDICAL

httpé://www.doc.state.sc.us/classing-reports/summaryReports.do
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Classing Summary Reports - Report View

04/28/2017
04/28/2017
03/21/2017
03/21/2017
06/27/2016
04/28/2016
08/01/2007
05/03/2006
05/03/2006
10/13/2005
03/03/2003
02/05/2003
12/13/2001
10/21/1998
10/21/1998
08/19/1997
08/11/1997
08/11/1997
06/12/1997
06/12/1997
03/18/1997
02/05/1997
12/18/1996
11/04/1996
06/18/1996
03/26/1996
03/26/1996
02/23/1995
01/28/1993
01/13/1993
12/21/1992

BROAD RIVER
KIRKLAND
BROAD RIVER
KIRKLAND
BROAD RIVER
KIRKLAND

UNK

MANNING
BROAD RIVER
MANNING
KERSHAW
WATEREE RIVER
MANNING
EVANS
RICHLAND CO
EVANS

BROAD RIVER
RICHLAND CO
BROAD RIVER
RICHLAND CO
BROAD RIVER
BROAD RIVER R&E
BROAD RIVER
BROAD RIVER R&E
BROAD RIVER
PERRY R&E
PERRY

LIEBER
KIRKLAND
BROAD RIVER R&E
PERRY R&E

INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
RELEASE
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
AUTH ABSENCE (AWL)
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
AUTH ABSENCE (AWL)
INCARCERATED
AUTH ABSENCE (AWL)
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED
INCARCERATED

HISTORY OF EARNED WORK CREDIT ASSIGNMENTS:

ADMINISTRATIVE
MEDICAL
ADMINISTRATIVE
MEDICAL
ADMINISTRATIVE
NEW ADMISSION

EXPIRATION OF SENTENCE

ADMINISTRATIVE

COURT/PAROLE HEARING VIA

ADMINISTRATIVE
ADMINISTRATIVE
ADMINISTRATIVE
ADMINISTRATIVE

RETURN FROM COURT

TO COURT
ADMINISTRATIVE

RETURN FROM COURT

TO COURT

RETURN FROM COURT

TO COURT
ADMINISTRATIVE

LOCKUP-INVESTIGATION

ADMINISTRATIVE

LOCKUP-INVESTIGATION

ADMINISTRATIVE
ADMINISTRATIVE
ADMINISTRATIVE
ADMINISTRATIVE
ADMINISTRATIVE
ADMINISTRATIVE
NEW ADMISSION

JOB DESCRIPTION
WARDKEEPER ASSISTANT
FOOD SERVICE AIDE
SANITATION WORKER
GENERAL WORKER
WARDKEEPER
WARDKEEPER
WARDKEEPER
WARDKEEPER
WARDKEEPER
WARDKEEPER
GENERAL WORKER
CUSTODIAL WORKER
CUSTODIAL WORKER
FOOD SERVICE AIDE
FOOD SERVICE AIDE
CUSTODIAL WORKER
CUSTODIAL WORKER
FOOD SERVICE AIDE
FOOD SERVICE AIDE

START DATE
11/30/2017
06/28/2016
11/17/2006
10/18/2005
04/09/2004
04/01/2004
10/30/2003
08/08/2003
07/25/2003
03/12/2003
12/18/2001
10/19/2001
02/16/2001
06/29/2000
07/16/1999
03/19/1999
12/01/1998
02/10/1998
10/22/1997

END DATE

09/26/2017
08/01/2007
11/02/2006
10/13/2005
04/08/2004
03/31/2004
10/29/2003
08/07/2003
07/24/2003
01/21/2003
12/13/2001
10/18/2001
02/15/2001
06/28/2000
05/09/1999
03/10/1999
11/30/1998
02/09/1998

TERMINATION REASON

UNSAT JOB PERFORM
RELEASED/PAROLED
PLACED IN ST/SP CUSTODY
INSTIT TRANSFER

MI ELIGIBLE FOR LEVEL 2
CUSTODY REVIEW
CUSTODY REVIEW
ASLT/DRUG/MAIJOR DISC
MI ELIGIBLE FOR LEVEL 2
PLACED IN ST/SP CUSTODY
INSTIT TRANSFER

MI ELIGIBLE FOR LEVEL 2
UNSAT JOB PERFORM
CUSTODY REVIEW

PLACED IN ST/SP CUSTODY
PLACED IN ST/SP CUSTODY
LATERAL TRANSFER
CUSTODY REVIEW

https://www.doc.state.sc.us/classing-reports/summaryReports.do
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JOB LVL
3F5
3F5
2F5
2F5
2F5
3F5
5F5
3F5
2F5
3F5
2F5
2F5
3F5
3F5
7F5
3FS
3F5
3F5
5F5

3/14/2019



Clasélzglmmary Reports - Report View

Page S of §
FOOD SERVICE AIDE 04/29/1997 06/26/1997 DISCIPLINARY/LOCK-UP 3F7
FOOD SERVICE AIDE 12/19/1996 02/05/1997 LOCKUP-INVESTIGATION SF7
SR DINING ROOM OPERATOR 10/05/1996 11/04/1996 LOCKUP-INVESTIGATION 3F7
FOOD SERVICE AIDE 06/26/1996 10/04/1996 PROMOTION SF7
SR TRAY LINE OPERATOR 05/16/1995 03/26/1996 INSTIT TRANSFER 3F7
WARDKEEPER 05/15/1995 05/15/1995 LATERAL TRANSFER 3F7
FOOD SERVICE AIDE 03/31/1995 05/14/1995 PROMOTION SF7
FOOD SERVICE AIDE 09/19/1994 11/05/1994 UNSAT JOB PERFORM SF7
FOOD SERVICE AIDE 04/28/1994 05/18/1994 MEDICAL SF7
FOOD SERVICE AIDE 12/20/1993 04/03/1994 UNSAT JOB PERFORM SF7
FOOD SERVICE AIDE 08/26/1993 10/29/1993 LOCKUP-INVESTIGATION SF7
FOOD SERVICE AIDE 08/09/1993 08/19/1993 LOCKUP-INVESTIGATION S5F7
FOOD SERVICE AIDE 06/29/1993 07/05/1993 LOCKUP-INVESTIGATION SF7
SR TRAY LINE OPERATOR 06/15/1993 06/28/1993 DEMOTION 3F7
FOOD SERVICE AIDE 02/11/1993 06/14/1993 PROMOTION SF7
HISTORY OF EARNED EDUCATION CREDITS:
EEC DESCRIPTION START DATE END DATE TERMINATION REASON
LVL 7 - FULL TIME(NO EWC) 06/29/1999 07/15/1999 LATERAL TRANSFER
BONUS 4-7 HRS/WK 04/06/1995 06/14/1995 INMATE REQUEST
3K 3K K K K KK KKK END OF REPORT 3K 3K 5K XK 5K K XK XK K kK
| Create PDF
Source : SummaryReport.jsp

Copyright © 2007-2019 South Carolina Department of Corrections. All rights reserved.
[Version: 1.4.16 Built: 06/21/2018 03:28:42 PM Time: 04:08:29 PM]
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*  STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA Q ) IN TH URT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

COUNTY OF LaurcW ; ‘
STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 15GS30-0504
i Christopher Jermaine Wells ) A/WH:  2014A3010100013

) ) Date of Offense: _10/31/2013
Race: Sex: M Age: 42 ) S.C.Code § :_16-11-0330
DOB: SS#: ) CDR Code #: 0139
Address: )
City,State,Zip: )
DL#: SID#: ) SENTENCE SHEET
*CDL Yes[[] No[J CMV Yes[[] No[] Hazmat Yes[[] No[]
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was X CONVICTED OF or [JPLEADS
TO: Robbery/ Armed Robbery, robbery while armed or allegedly armed with a deadly we
in violationof § 16-11-0330 of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0139
[T] NON-VIOLENT X VIOLENT [JSERIOUS [X]MOST SERIOUS []Mandatory GPS(CSC §17-25-45

w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)

The charge is: As Indicted, [JLesser Included Offense, []Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant’s initials)
The plea is: [JWithout Neggtiations or Recommendation, [ Negotiated Sentence, [J Recommendation by the State.
ATTEST: @ [ \ ) ? i > :

Mowry, O. Warren 1 i SC Bar# i Defendant Attorney for Defendant SC Bar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant _? commited to the t epartment of Corrections, [] County Detention Center,

e m‘PlPum Secton -5 -

for a determinate ternf o days/months/years or [ | under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years
and/or to pay a fine of § ; provided that upon the service of days/months/years and/or payment
of § . ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.

%/C/FQNCURRENT or  [] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: /S - S~ J6 -505
R

e Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
by the State Department of Corrections.
[[] The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[CJRESTITUTION: [] Deferred [[] Def. Waives Hearing [JOrdered PTUP
Total: $ plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED 0
[J Set by SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
— May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling O
*Fine: $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing O
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) 3 Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 $ 100 pmts. of $ beginning
§ 14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 " § .
§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) s12 § $ .—-——‘AP Wﬁ%@m WRIGINAL
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 3 Other: 0
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 $ %‘9‘- U) O D.«ﬁu'f.‘?v
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25  § AN Fynn-W-Lancaster
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 $ La :
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 $ urens County CCCp & GS
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea § [0 Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 $ 5 § 47.12 requires $500 be paid
3%to County (if paid in installments) $ A.90 during probation.
TOTAL $ 123.490
. 8 Presiding Judge
Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk é@ﬁ\w\ bO (]‘Q Mmot) Judge Code: 21S
Court Reporter: U Tara SC.oﬂ" Sentence Date: +H-n7- [ Lp

SCCA/217 (03/2011)
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN TH URT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
COUNTY OF Laure] ;
STATE VS.. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 15GS30-0505
Christopher Jermaine Wells ) A/WE  2015D3000100026
ARA: ) Date of Offense: _10/31/2013
Race: Sex: M Age: 42 ) S.C.Code § :_16-17-0410
pos: [N ss+ )  CDR Code #: _ 0049
Address: )
City,State,Zip:
DL SIDE: ; SENTENCE SHEET
*CDL Yes[] No[] CMV Yes[] No[] Hazmat Yes[] No[]
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was [X] CONVICTED OF or [(JPLEADS
TO: Conspiracy/Criminal Conspiracy, Common Law conspiracy defined
in violation of § 16-17-0410 of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0049
NON-VIOLENT (J VIOLENT [JSERIOUS [JMOST SERIOUS  [JMandatory GPS(CSC []817-25-45
w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)
The charge is:  [X] As Indicted, []Lesser Included Offense, [[JDefendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials)
The plea is: [ Without Negetiations or Recommendation, [ Negotiated Sentence, [] Recommendation by the State.
ATTEST: 4 rzq_ .

Mowry, O."Warren SCBar# ! Defendant Attorney for Defendant SC Bar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the mte Department of Corrections, [] County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of s davelmren @ [ underthe Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years
and/or to pay a fine of $ ; provided that upon the service of days/months/years and/or payment
of ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of

probation, which are incorporated by reference.
B{QHCURRENT or [J CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: / 5 - 6’5 - 30 - 504 g{’\/'
E’&N Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
by the State Department of Corrections.

(0 The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[JRESTITUTION: [ ] Deferred [] Def. Waives Hearing [(J ordered  pPTUP
Total: $ plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED 0
(J Setby SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
— ' May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling 3
*Fine: $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing 0O
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $1600 § |oO pmts.of § ___a wbegmmgp
§ 14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 $ .
§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) 512 7§ S paidoo P(‘Lbﬁ peren'y Fu&m@
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 % . Other: Sy 2 A
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 3 " fﬂynn_MLM_S
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 § 2% 1 CP&G
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 ~ $ - :
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 $
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea " $ [J Appointed PD or appointed otheggounsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 $ g 847.12 requires $500 be paid
3% to County (if paid in installments) $ 2 Q0 during probation.
TOTAL $ 1323 590
,%D’ Presiding Judge
Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk %’) U\S ‘ m Judge Cfde: ¢
Court Reporter: J Ta-’(' [ M Sentence Date:

SCCA/217 (03/2011)
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*  STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INTH URT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
COUNTY OF Laure ;
STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 15GS30-0503
Christopher Jermaine Wells ) A/WH:  2014A3010100011
AKA: ) Date of Offense: _10/31/2013
Race: Sex: M Age: 42 ) S.C.Code § :_16-23-0490
DOB: SS#: ) CDR Code #: 0549
Address: )
City,State,Zip:
DL#: SID#: g SENTENCE SHEET
*CDL Yes[] No[] CMV Yes[] No[]] Hazmat Yes[] No[]
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was [J CONVICTED OF or {XIPLEADS
TO: Weapons / Poss. weapon during violent crime, if not also sentenced to life witho
in violation of § 16-23-0490 of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0549
NON-VIOLENT [0 VIOLENT [JSERIOUS [JMOST SERIOUS [JMandatory GPS(CSC [(]§17-25-45
w/minor st or Lewd Act)
The charge is: As Indicted, [JJLesser Included Offense, ~[]Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials)
The plea is: tiations or Recommendation, [0 Negotiated Sentence, [ Recommendation by the State.

ATTEST:

42y
Mowry, O. Warren d SC Bar#&lo Defendant .. Attomey fo ?efeﬁn E C Bar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the [J State Depa,tment oitCorrectlons, IS_Z] County Detention Centgr‘g 30
-50¢

for a determinate term of days/months/years or  [] under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed
and/or to pay a fine of $ ; provided that upon the service of days/months/years and/or payment

of ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.

[J CONCURRENT or [J CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:
[] The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
by the State Department of Corrections.

[] The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[JRESTITUTION: [[] Deferred [} Def. Waives Hearing (JOrdered  PTUP
Total: $ plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED 0
(OJ Set by SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
— May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling 0J
*Fine: 3 Random Drug/Alcohol testing
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 $ [CO pmts. of $ beginning
§ 14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 §
§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) $12 7§ 5 W GBI ORIGINAL
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 % Oer. A
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 " § /\Hmm ) ﬂmﬂfm/
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) 25 5 % M7
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 3 Lynn W Far P & GS
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 3 Laurens County CCC
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea " § (] Appointed PD or appointed other.gounsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 $ > § 47.12 requires $500 be pai
3% to County (if paid in installments) $§ 2 90 during probation.
TOTAL $§ |32 G0
05 Presiding Judge
Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk NC. Judge Code: (59
(=) * =4
Court Reporter: Gy o SCO’F(\" Sentence Date: Y7 71— [E

SCCA/217 (03/2011)





